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Name: NOSTELL PRIORY

District: Wakefield (Metropolitan Authority)
Parish: Hessle and Hill Top

District: Wakefield (Metropolitan Authority)
Parish: Huntwick with Foulby and Nostell
District: Wakefield (Metropolitan Authority)
Parish: Sharlston

District: Wakefield (Metropolitan Authority)
Parish: West Hardwick

label.localisation:  Latitude: 53.653937
Longitude: -1.3831550
National Grid Reference: SE 40867 17670
Map: Download afull scale map (PDF)

label.overview:  Heritage Category: Park and Garden
Grade: I1*
List Entry Number: 1001224
Datefirst listed: 01-Dec-1984

Details

Parkland which retains elements of an early C18 scheme by Stephen Switzer and later C18 additionsincluding lodges by Robert
Adam; pleasure grounds with late C18 structures.

HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT

A priory was founded on the site during the C12 and some of its buildings were converted to a house following the Dissolution.
Ownership passed through severa hands until it was acquired by the Winn family in 1650. In 1729 the fourth baronet, Sir
Rowland Winn, decided to abandon the monastic buildings, but ruinswere still visiblein 1765. No visible remains of the priory
survive today apart from a building called the Monks' Refectory which has been incorporated into the home farm (see below).
The park remains (1997) in private ownership and the house and gardens belong to the National Trust (1997) which received
them as a gift from the Winn family in 1953.

DESCRIPTION

LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Nostell Priory is situated ¢ 10km south-east of Wakefield
between the villages of Wragby, to the east, and Foulby to the west. The ¢ 120ha siteisin arura and agricultural setting on
land which slopes down to the south and east. The A638 forms part of the south boundary and cuts through the site at its south-
west corner. The oval-shaped core of the park has amixture of brick and stone walls running along the north side of the A638,
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and the remainder, along Foulby Park and around Top Park Wood to the west, and along Engine Laneto the east, iswalled in
stone. The area around Upper Lake at the south-west end of the site is fenced, as is the easternmost section north of Wragby.
ENTRANCES AND APPROACHES Wragby Lodge is situated on the north side of the A638 and consists of paired lodges
(listed grade I1) of ¢ 1777 by Robert Adam (1728-92). The present principa entrance is situated ¢ 70m to the west of Wragby
L odge and was formed during the late C20. Obelisk Lodge (listed grade I1*) is at the north end of the site and was the entrance
from Pontefract via a road which is now (1997) disused. Designed in 1776 by Robert Adam, it is in the form of a narrow
pyramid pierced by a central entrance framed by a Tuscan doorway. It is situated at the highest point of the park and views of
it are available from various points in the northern part of the park.

Another entranceis situated in Foulby where there is alodge called Foulby Lodge (listed grade I1). The drive, which has been
re-routed to the west to avoid running past the lodge which is in use (1997) as a private residence, runs east and north-east,
dividing ¢ 500m north of the house. One branch leads north to a caravan sitein Top Park Wood and the other swings west and
joins with the drive leading south to the house from Obelisk Lodge. An entrance with amid C19 lodge (listed grade 1) leads
to the house via the home farm and lies ¢ 100m west of Wragby Lodge.

PRINCIPAL BUILDING Nostell Priory (listed grade 1) is thought to have been designed ¢ 1730 by Colonel James Moyser
(guidebook 1990) and based on Palladio's Villa Mocenigo. The erection of the building was supervised by James Paine from
1736. Robert Adam was commissioned to finish the interior of the house in 1765, and he also added the family wing at the
north-east corner of the house 1779-80. Some 60m south-east of the house there is a stable block ranged around a courtyard
(listed grade 1). The south and west ranges were designed by Robert Adam 1770-6 and the north and east ranges by James
Pritchett and Charles Watson of Y ork, 1827(9. The south range has a garden house attached to the outer wall.

Some 350m south-east of the house there is ahome farm which consists of arange of buildingsincluding the Monks' Refectory
(listed grade 11*) with C15 monastic origins, a C17 brewhouse (listed grade 1) and a number of early to mid C19 farm and
estate buildings (most of them listed grade I1).

GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS Immediately south of the garden house, which is attached to the south wall of the
stables, thereisaformal garden in an area defined on the east side by the west wall of the kitchen gardens, the park wall to the
south and a fence attached to the south-west side of the stables which runs south to the park wall. An ornate wrought-iron gate
in this fence (listed grade I1) is probably of late C18 or early C19 date and resembles the listed gates north of the house. Some
20m south of the garden house thereisa circular pond (listed grade 11), which is not shown on the 1919 OS map. The area has
been laid out as arose garden, probably in the C20, and it is divided into two areas by alow wall which runs across the garden
¢ 40m south of the garden house. The 1919 and earlier OS maps show it with a system of paths and scattered trees.

Pleasure grounds lie to the north, south and west of the house on each side of alake called Middle Lake which is overlooked by
the house and situated ¢ 100m west of the west front. An informal lawn lies between the house and a steep scarp dropping down
to the Lake and to the south of this there is woodland with paths leading through it, much as shown on the 1st edition OS map
surveyed 1849-51. Some 20m north of the house a wrought-iron fence with two decorative late C18 or early C19 gates (listed
grade 1) divides the lawns from woodland. Paths lead north to the head of the Lake which has a dam separating it from Lower
Lake, to the north. The lakes are mentioned in medieval monastic charters, but the dam may have been created by Stephen
Switzer (1682-1745) who shows it on a plan of 'improvements made and to be made' at Nostell of ¢ 1732. Switzer may also
have modified the lake outlines. There are views south-westwards over Middle Lake to Nostell Bridge carrying the A638 which
was designed by George Savilein 1761 (listed grade I1*) and divides Middle Lake from Upper Lakein the parkland to the west.
A path leads over the dam at the north end of Middle Lake and then turns south along the west side of the L ake along a causeway
between the Lake and low-lying land to the west. Beyond, the land rises with areas of woodland and rhododendrons with paths
leading through them. The path running alongside the Lake gives views of the house over the water and turns at the edge of the
garden to run north-west to a stone gothick archway (listed grade I1) probably of late C18 date and situated ¢ 250m west of the
house. This leads into a disused quarry which was converted into a menagerie in the later C18 and provided with the gothick
Menagerie House (listed grade I1) mentioned in Robert Adam's correspondence of 1776 which suggests that he modified an
existing structure which was probably designed by James Paine. Estate papers of 1797 record payments to a 'menagery man
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and woman' who probably looked after the animals. South of the Menagerie House and ¢ 300m west of the house thereis an
earth mound of unknown origin.

A band of woodland north of the Menagerie separates the pleasure grounds from the park and extends north-eastwards around
the north side of Lower Lake, which is connected to Middle Lake by a weir beneath the dam. Paths lead around Lower Lake
which has abasin at its eastern end, ¢ 450m north-east of the house, which is divided from the Lake by a bridge which carries
the north drive from Obelisk Lodge. A boathouse lies on the south side of the basin (basin, bridge and boathouse are all C18
and listed grade I1). Switzer's plan shows Lower Lake further to the east connected with a serpentine canal running west across
the park. A county map of 1771 showsthe Lakein approximately this position, but it appearsin its present form on the 1849-51
OS map.

PARK Parkland is situated to the north, north-west and east of the house. The walled oval core of the park conforms with the
extent of parkland shown on Switzer's ¢ 1732 plan. In addition to this, to the south-west, Upper Lake lies on the south side of
the A638 outside the park wall. The Lake is sheltered by woodland on the south and west sides, and it is shown in an early C19
view (Sheeran 1990) with Nostell Bridge and house beyond.

In the south-west corner of the park, immediately east of Foulby, thereis an area used as commercial market gardens. North of
this, Foulby Park is under arable cultivation. In the north-west corner of the site a caravan park is situated in Top Park Wood
and Obelisk Park and Mill Piece to the north and north-east are also under arable cultivation.

East of the house there is open parkland and beyond this, ¢ 300m to the east, there is an avenue which is shown on Switzer's
plan, asis aha-hac 800m east of the house, which is bowed outwards and connected on each side with the park wall. Beyond
the ha-ha the avenue is continued. This is not shown on Switzer's plan and the land was probably added in the late C18. A
scheme for the park was drawn up in 1731 by Joseph Perfect (ibid) but there is no evidence that it was executed.

KITCHEN GARDEN The kitchen gardens are situated between the home farm and the south-east corner of the stables. The
north wall, which is attached to the stables, is of stone with an inner brick lining and there is an entrance at the north-east end.
This areais divided from a garden to the south by awall running at an angle so that the gardens have trapezoid forms. The
south garden has the remains of glasshouses within it.

OTHER LAND The church of St Michael and Our Lady (C16, listed grade ) is situated in awalled churchyard ¢ 420m south-
east of the house and reached viathe drive leading north from Wragby L odge. The church is the parish church for Wragby and
the churchyard contains a number of listed monuments.
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Lega

This garden or other land is registered under the Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953 within the Register of
Historic Parks and Gardens by Historic England for its special historic interest.
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